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ERZEGEFELBIMNERBMEENR AR ERIENRENATIZEZHE -BRZEENRERFTE T 9

REFRETEEGHN  LDEURFREETEN BRI ZEHERER HTEZRSAERABRIERLFERE

FR ERZEGCHRAEZTERIEERSE  YEHAEEZFE  THEE2FRE  BEMAREZEAHER
EUDTEEBREZHERER -
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Exg([E52 ) MARZBE_ZERNF A=+ HEFELTRBERERAR ([ARF]) REWBEAR (1
[(AEE]D 2FREEERKEB

o

FEEK

AR —HEREERAR - HRBEARIZENZAVMERE S  REAVMERZRERE (BEKEEFHEMAA
FIAE U A SR (K48 RS M B 5 IR TS e o BY IR 7)o

RAEAREMBRS

RIZEZRFERA TR ARARMERAER  ERFREBEHBRRA - EEMRKRD ZEHE RE400,000,000% 7T K
=t $4  f8 BR & 4 4911,100,00008 7T 2 77 SUAETT Ao & G RARARHDR - IRAEAFHNBEMN 2 Bk B H=E18

AR FR ZZZ A4\ AFNorth Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp. ([NASAC)) R & EH k4 ([EhL])EEAH
30,000,000 7T+ /7 3 B[R % 1% & & %17 E {8 420,000,000/% 7T 2 7] # % (& % K& 12 48 73 % (& 10,000,000 7T 2 17 4
63,857,000 & IR EH0.018 T 2 WA 2 #T A% - WA E 2 H = B H N KEMN 2 Bk B fifzt18 -

RZZEZARFZAZ+H - AARIREIESBIERFELRIER - #300,000,000/% 7T 5 £30,000,000,0003% & X H &
0.01 T ZBER » AR R ZATEMAE HNIZE 700,000,000/ Tt ° = BEEHABEKN 2R B 18 °

REZZFEZEARF=ZA=1+—H ' ARASEBR19AEE R BHEREEEI747,383,167,000/% & I E E0.017% T 2 Al R E
& B A £491,156,000,000/8 7T - W EFERARTR ST ANF—A - +WB FI%Z@E&REEH 2B HE18 -

ofF

ERRAERE

BEBREARZMER ST RAFNATAABRLCERAAEHEE ARG BER ST RFNANEHA
[iSteelAsia Holdings Limited| & 2 % [ North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited] °

TEEHR

REEBRE_EERF AT - HLEFEZREBDERMR OB 2B R O BEEEDTHNBEN 2R A 55 -
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DIkFEE(ZETRE  E) -

EEMBEHRE

AEERBEABAYBRFEZEEUNREERBBEHMEBHAN A FRFI4AEESA °

og: PN

AAREKE AR ZFIEHNBEN 2B B M E9 °

BERRE

RAFEEARE MR E 2 EEFE B 28R B K 5E6

N\

RITEM
R-BERNF=ZA=FT—BZROTEFFHRBEM 2R B HFE14 -
BEXFE

REBRNFALEBEFNSERL -

i 3 R B Z R AR QA & 3§ 2005/2006



BIKE 58

RS EFHNBEWN 2R B fisE22 -

E=E
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Goran Sture Malm (/&) (R=ZZRENANLBAEZMT)
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Henry Cho Kim (R=ZZRENANLBAEZMT)
#4812
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FHITES

David Michael Faktorst 4 (R=FZTRENANABT)

BYFHITES
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BREERRBFAS LEEEE2EFTRAEEERTLEMNAIIRAERERRN - FAKEMBASMHE CEERFE
BRON) 2 RIS E A -

SRELLE BHREAEREATAELASAZASOA_ZEZAF+ A AERH=F - REBFTREARF Z A A
AR RBFEARE LREERRBEEESE -

EEHEFRNRENRZRE fE22 -

EERESTRAERKRG  HRAROREEZBZRERAR

RZZBZRF=ZA=+—H BEFREFRARSTBRAENRBEEEE Z2HBEA TR AR A LEMEEZR (ERXRES
REERD] ([ 5 RAEEG) XV 2kt - BEKkOREREFES THATNAREES BB GO F352(% T

NEFEZERMARBRBEAZER ETREEE.46E5 67 EHEFETEFRRIZIAETRAMNS AR R RN 2 EE K

WA
REDARBRABRRGOZFR

(a) M2l 2 ARG IEARAREEERTEEARMNTIABEMNEL - SRELERERER _ZFEAEF-A-t+WARK
REBZBNAREELRZEREDLBALTBR -

LR O BA LI ER ST RF=A=+ " HE&T295,794,716[R EBK - MUFREELEREEHLBRERZ

(b) Tt
ERETEBRAEHE -

g3 Fi%RE BRZAH
ESpg % LER#E KG#AE @it BALO M
RABEE ZERH AR 10,592,098 - 10,592,098 11.06% 1
(T4 54D s
Henry Cho Kim REH AT - 99,106,003 99,106,003 103.46% 2
([Cho%k41) e
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EERBEETRAERKRG  HBEROREEEZEERRAE (&)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

Hiat -

1. ZEREEIE
(i) Huge Top Industrial Ltd. ([Huge Topl) # & 1,598, 113X AR R 2 R BB D - IREEEEFEH11.91% %

i# #B Perfect Capital International Corp. ([Perfect Capitall ) f# # & Huge TopE2 217 & AN 4742.86% ° #k 5t 4 # & Perfect
Capital 2 ZfE /TR A + W AHuge TopMEBEEZ — ° Bt * RIEBEFES RHEEHE - 8kt £ 38R A% B Huge TopFi#F
ZHERDBBRMDERS

(ii) BEESEARAR ([BIEE]) 22 &K B2 7 Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited ([VSC BVI]) # & 6,336,309f% 2

RAERMG Z W R BES s - Huge Topli A BIEE B B 1TRANL47.05% - 54 AVSCBVINEZEE 2 — - Bt - 1B
BEFRBEKRN - hEEBERBEABVSCBVIFIFZZEARARMNER - ZERMET X [RIEEFRBEKAGSE
XVEE2R E3NHEA AT RE 2wk R 2 A L] — &l 3H22F73 2 6,336,309 iR (5 HE A :

(iii) TN Development Limited ([ TNJ) # 75 1,633,676k A 2 Gl ik h 2 # R R ¥E A #E s o VSC BVIFEA TNE E TR A54%
MgkEERETNEZETRE10% - hEERTNMEBEET 22— Bt - REBEZFRAEKRE - hEERBEREETNAFE
ZRERNBRDER - ZEROETX[RIBEZF RPEGROIEXVHF2REINAHEARATHREZ BRIAREZ AL
— BN Fff sk 22F Tt 2 1,633,676k B A R ¢ &

(iv) Right Action Offshore Inc. ([Right Action]) # %5 1,024,000% 2~ A &] i& 17 # 25 o %k %t 4 # & Right Action® 3 B 2 /T
N NAZRARZE—ES -

2. % % fH B8 A% {5 B Chost 4 i # Kenthomas Company Limited#s #l 2 /A @ Timeless Enterprises Limited ([ Timeless]) 35 ° R
Cho’t A Timeless Z # 45 + M A 71 ¥ 599,106,003 E AR (H #E 5 - MIRIEEZ REAE K] - Chot AR REAZZHE
BRDHER - ZSHBARODETXIREZSFRPEEGEXVHFE2RFINHHEBATHE 2 ESSABR 2 AL — & 1780t
ZAEERMDAER °

BREXFEEEN RZTERF=ZA=1T—"H BECANEERARAIERTBEAEXRESZEZHEALTRAAT

REREZEE (ER2REFRMEKRIIEXVE) 2E 5P RBEAERIOAR - BRORES S RBEGRHIEXVEETR
FeNMAMEARA LM (BEREZZMPERIZZERERBAIEEREG ZRELRR) + HNLATIA
REESRPBEEIFEI2FETAFE 2ELMA - H(i)REAXZR ETRNEELTRARESTETESI G ZHAEA
MEARRA R 2 EFAERIOAR

BrEXmdES  MEEERARRARDITRABXBEZLBIRM185 .2 FLHEA EAIAR R HE AL EE
HfEm  RERIBDITERBEMNARFHEEMBBEEE S ZEMER -
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EERBEETRAERKRG  HBEROREEEZEERRAE (&)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

B EXPrtESN  REREMRERARRSIEEFAMBRARAME2EEMLHE  BREEFIEARFAKSTHA
BEZRBRARM185E 2 F2) Al B AR B S BRI HEEE 2 iy sk B E mERNE -

0
)
oh

REBLZRBERAEXVBFE2RFIIBHAFATHREZRERIXAZAL

RZZBZRF=ZA=1+—"H BREZTHIALARARSTRAEMA  TIAL(EREXREREZEZTRARAKDT
BABBINRARBARNDRBEROS  BEARBEEFRBEGKIEXVHE2REIDHELHREZEEHAA
R/ SREESEEMEERERMNTRFAEBATERASEEMEMKERRZLRRAE EREZEHTRAZ10%5
WA EReas CERMERS RZFRA 2 BERE) -

REDAROREBRBOZEFR
(c) TR ZEERD (TXMEARAMAERIN) DEARRRBRBREERTELERMNG 2 AREMES - SRELRBRER =
EERF-—A_THEARRFEZBHABRBEEERZ GREBD AR B EBR o T XME1RAFTEZ % S8BT E X%

HRERESFMEL  AHEABIAR_ZTRFAA-_THRRRFEZBE -

(d) TRFR OB L IER BT RF=ZA=+"HE&7295,794,716R EBR - MUFRKEERRABRBKESEEZH
RBREAZEEHTEARH -

FERR(FHEBKKRZ )

igs; Fiis e BR2EBH
&8 g4 ZERYE BRAE @it Ak  ff
Bt E EnBEBA 19,693,486 39,386,973 59,080,459 61.68% 1
(TBEE])
ek NG 2 509,400 — 509,400 0.53% 2
FREETE I ER — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 3
208,248,863 217.39%
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REFERBEROAEXVEBF2RFIIBATATHEZREZRIRAEZAL (@)

REABROREBRDOZER ()

FTERR(FHEBRKRZEm) (F)

k=3 FrisiaeE BR2EH
28 g4 EEREE BREAE @t BEAO [
North Asia Strategic EEREA 44,163,474 88,326,947 132,490,421 138.31% 4
Acquisition Corp.
(TNASAC])
North Asia Strategic REH AR 2 EE 44,163,474 88,326,947 132,490,421 138.31% 455
Advisors ([NASA|)
Ajia Partners Inc. 32 VNG 2 44,163,474 88,326,947 132,490,421 138.31% 4%6
(TAPI])
FTERR (FAELERREZ #Em
The Goldman Sachs REH AR 2 B — 2,477,650,064 2,477,650,064 2586.42% 7
Group, Inc.([Goldman))
ABN AMRO Asset ERBEEA — 1,238,825,032 1,238,825,032 1293.21%
Management
Holding N.V.
AERTERRA ERERA — 743,295,019 743,295,019 775.92%
Oikos Asia Fund ([Oikos])  EZEA A — 495,530,013 495,530,013 517.28% 8
Tiger International ERBEEA — 297,318,008 297,318,008 310.37% 9
Management Inc.
([Tiger])
EHOES REH ARz B — 297,318,008 297,318,008 310.37% 9
RREZHN REH ARz B — 297,318,008 297,318,008 310.37% 9
Banca Monte Dei BRBEBA — 247,765,006 247,765,006 258.64%
Paschi Di Siena Spa
Grand Loyal (China) K& A — 247,765,006 247,765,006 258.64% 10

Limited ([ Grand Loyall)
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REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

FTERR (FHEARKR Z #z) (B)

k=i FrisaeE BR2ELH
&8 g4 LEREE ROEA @t BAkO  fi
fa] B & b3k NG — 247,765,006 247,765,006 258.64% 10
Grand Partners Group REA = 247,765,006 247,765,006 258.64% 11
Limited ([Grand
Partners])
ERE REH ARz B — 247,765,006 247,765,006 258.64% 11
BART(BH) BERERA — 199,233,717 199,233,717 207.98%
BRAA
HIBREE ERBEEA — 198,212,005 198,212,005 206.91% 12
BRAR([EL])
by REH ARz B — 198,212,005 198,212,005 206.91% 12
BlIEET ENiE — 198,212,005 198,212,005 206.91% 12
Asia Internet Capital BERBEA — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 13
Ventures LP ([AICV])
Asia Internet Capital 32y NGl £ — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 13
Management LLC
EC.com Inc. REH ARz B — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 13
Smart Channel REH AR 2 B — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 13

Investments Inc.

tEXBEEREBERZA
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REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

FTERR (FHEARKR Z #z) (B)

k=i FrisaeE BR2EH
% g4 LEREE ROEA @i Ak  ffE
MKT Holdings REH DAz ER — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 13
(Cayman Islands)
LLC
HSBC International A — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 13
Trustee Limited
Gentfull Investment EREAA — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 14
Limited ([ Gentfull])
Rez REHARzER — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 14
Doutdes S.P.A. BRBEBA — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 15
([Doutdes])
UFI Filters SPA XERHARz#R — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 15
GGG SPA ek NG 2= — 148,659,004 148,659,004 155.18% 15
G.G.G. SA. EEHEA — 99,106,003 99,106,003 103.46% 16
Giorgio Girondi XEB AR 2 s — 247,765,007 247,765,007 258.64% 15% 16
Timeless EEHEA — 99,106,003 99,106,003 103.46% 17
Kenthomas Company REA — 99,106,003 99,106,003 103.46% 17
Limited
KKR Group ExEAA — 89,080,460 89,080,460 99.22% 18

Investments |l LLC
(TKKRJ)

F 2 2005/2006

it 5 R ERERAQFA



REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

FTERR (FHEARKR Z #z) (B)

Fi P B ERz2EH
A 5% EERHA RHEE @it BAkO [
George Rosenberg REH DAz ER — 89,080,460 89,080,460 99.22% 18
Roberts
Henry Roberts Kravis Rt NG - 32 — 89,080,460 89,080,460 99.22% 18
Glint Delta Il NV ([Glint]) RaA — 78,544,061 78,544,061 81.99% 19
Fentener Van Vlissingen EEBEAA — 78,544,061 78,544,061 81.99% 19
Harold ([Harold])
Rawlco Capital Ltd. EnEAA — 49,553,001 49,553,001 51.73% 20
(TRawlco))
Gordon Stanley Rt NG - 32 — 49,553,001 49,553,001 51.73% 20
Rawlinson
UBS Espafia, S.A. REIN — 128,441,377 128,441,377 134.08% 21
(Tuss))
Angeles Gonzalez Garcia Rt NG - 32 — 49,553,001 49,553,001 51.73% 21
Jorge Garcia Gonzalez Rl NG - 32 — 49,553,001 49,553,001 51.73% 21
Sphirantes RaA — 49,553,001 49,553,001 51.73% 21
Cesar Molinas Sanz ExHEA — 17,343,550 17,343,550 18.10% 21
Kobrither, S.A. RaA — 14,865,900 14,865,900 15.52% 21

tEXBEEREBERZA
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REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

FTERR (FHEARKR Z #z) (B)

Fi# B iR BERZBH
#B &1 EERBE gt ¢! b BAkO  ffE
Antonio Del Cano Barbon REHRAZ# R — 14,865,900 14,865,900 15.52% 21
Ramén Suarez Beltran EREAA — 9,910,600 9,910,600 10.35% 21
Ricardo Sanz Ferrer EREAA — 9,910,600 9,910,600 10.35% 21
Miguel Ortie-Echeverria EnEAA — 9,910,600 9,910,600 10.35% 21
BMAL (FHELERREZ #am

Fis B ERZBH
%9 &1 EERHA RBEE @t BAlkO  ffE
Arcosilo, S.L. REA — 7,432,950 7,432,950 7.76% 21
Blanca Rueda Sabater B3t NG 3 — 7,432,950 7,432,950 7.76% 21
Fernando Rueda Sabater B3t NG 3 — 7,432,950 7,432,950 7.76% 21
Richardo de Ponga Bianco ~ Zz#A A — 5,946,360 5,946,360 6.21% 21
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REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

HMAL (FHEARRRZ #a)
Fi# B iR BERZBH
#B &1 EERBE gt ¢! b BAkO  ffE
VSC BVI ERBEEA 6,336,309 — 6,336,309 6.61% 22
REHRAZ# R 1,633,676 - 1,633,676 1.71% 22
7,969,985 8.32%
ElES el VNG 53 6,336,309 — 6,336,309 6.61%
el VNG 53 1,633,676 — 1,633,676 1.71%
7,969,985 8.32% 2223
Huge Top ERBBA 1,598,113 - 1,598,113 1.67%
Ce et VNGIPA: £ 6,336,309 - 6,336,309 6.61%
REHRAZ# R 1,633,676 - 1,633,676 1.71%
9,568,098 9.99%  22%24

it R B ERAERAR

A
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REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

REDRARGREBRBOZEFR (B)

HMAL (FHEBRKR Z #zm) (F)

Fi s B iR BERZBH
#B &t EERBE gt ¢! b BAkO  ffE
Perfect Capital REH ARz B 1,598,113 — 1,598,113 1.67%
et VNGIPA: £ 6,336,309 - 6,336,309 6.61%
REHRAZ# R 1,633,676 — 1,633,676 1.71%
9,568,098 9.99%  22%24
9 Silh- e el VNG £ 1,598,113 - 1,598,113 1.67%
:3:%))
el VNG 53 6,336,309 — 6,336,309 6.61%
el VNG £ 1,633,676 — 1,633,676 1.71%
9,568,098 9.99%  22%25
B et
1. o S 4 H B H 19,693,486/% IR 15 K FEHN39,386,97 3% fit 12 ¥ F 2 AR (B 0.156678 T R AT R F 5 M A T 217 2 AR (D #x -
2. Oboe Development Trading Limited (F3 G 55 A2 E B ) B #1545 % 509,400/ ix 7 °
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REFLERBEROAEXVEBE2REFIIBAFATHRECRSZI XA ZAL (F)

RAEDRAROREBRBOZEFR (B)

Hiat : (&)

10.

il

12.

13.

HREEEAE2ERT (Z2#(EE 225 A AHSBC International Trustee Limited ([HSBC Trusteel) ) Z A2 A+ U 4R
A1k 75 148,659,004 0% #H B8 i% (9 # 25 ° HSBC Trusteei® i = 1 Asia Internet Capital Management LLC (X BAICVZ & & B A)
2 PR RS 25 T 4% 45, 5 5 148,659,004 8% 48 B AR (D #E 25 © 5% S5 148,659,004 % 48 78 A% 17 2 T SCFT aE13FT it 2 A8 A AR (D 4B R ©

Hit - REEFRHAERD - BEERE /A A 208,248,863 ot a ©

NASACE # # 5 44,163,474 % A% 17 I 58 51\88,326,947 % & 12 ] 25 2 A& {8 0. 156678 7T 5 R AT H IR & 35 M °] T 2817 2 HHRARR 5 #E 2 o
E it © NASACH: 1R B A & $£132,490,421 R R D 45 o

NASAHE A —IRNASACZ ER Z# 2 HR - FILEMR /HHE 182,490,421k IR 5 #E 2= ©
APIZ BB FTANASARR D + MNASARF A —IRNASACZ B IR EH L BR D - E It - AP R A H 182,490,421 R IR D #E 4 ©

#Z = MR {5 I Goldman#f A& © Goldman /& The Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance Holdings L.L.C{% %2 A ] ° The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc.i% i H & #Z i B 2 7] The Goldman Sachs Global Holdings L.L.C. % H & # K} & 2 & The Goldman Sachs & Co. (%
72 @ Bl & The Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance Holdings L.L.CZ R A R)) M#ER AEE ZSHEARGEZ - Bt - BRRES
B Goldman (A F XA 2 HMARMNEE ER) 2 ARz WREBEFFRBER  ZESHHUERAEEZSHBRG

R o
#Z% £ AR 19 B Oikos35 /& + Oikos A& Walkers SPV LimitedfZ §l 2 A &) ©

ZEABEBRD B TigerF5 & © TigerSRMELERRR I NLZ LG Z A - ARNKERTigerz # i - MREEZ RHAEHH -
MABREREE ZEHER DS

7 % HHE AR 5 B Grand LoyaliF & + Grand Loyal B{A B &k £ Hl 2 A7) - AR M Grand LoyalZ # iz + IR IERE HF R B E 1K
Bl - IR ERRBEEZSHBRDER °

#Z 5 A8 RA MR 19 B Grand Partners#% A * Grand Partners /&1t 18 5t &£ # §l 2 2 7] ° R A Grand PartnersZ #z + #UR 1R &
HFREBEGRE  MAEWBRABEEZSHARGEDS -
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 46 to 108 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,
on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company
and of the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2005/2006
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BASIS OF OPINION (Cont’d)

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2006 and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st June 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement #R&UWEHF

For the year ended 31st March 2006 #Z - ZFTZENF=A=1—HIFZE

ZEEARE —ZTERF
2006 2005
K it FET FiBT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
PN Revenue
— HE — Sales 355,426 854,564
— He — Commission 4,522 5,121
359,948 859,685
$HE K AR Cost of sales (354,154) (828,580)
EF Gross profit 5,794 31,105
H fth)F Y Other gains — net 20 5,051 2,087
HERDHER Selling and distribution expenses (2,180) (7,494)
—RRITHEA General and administrative expenses (22,364) (25,139)
wE (B8 s fl Operating (loss)/profit (13,699) 559
BMisER Finance costs 23 (3,296) (5,056)
BETS BRI E B Loss before income tax (16,995) (4,497)
FrEfRERE, () Income tax credit/(expense) 24 5,007 (5,946)
RRRERTEA Loss for the year, attributable
FEIEF AEE to equity holders of the Company 25 (11,988) (10,443)
RARERITEA Loss per share for loss attributable
EhEREE to the equity holders of the Company
— &R — Basic 26 HK(17.7) cents  HK(65.4) cents
MEALSREMBHRERZBEDS - The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited Annual Report 2005/2006



Balance Sheets EE&BE®X

As at 31st March 2006 R -—ZEZFE~NF=H=+—H

] NG|
Consolidated Company
“EIRE —Z3RE “EEXE —23RfF
2006 2005 2006 2005
fifzt FEx FEL TErn FAL
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BE Rk Plant and equipment 6 478 1,411 — —
BURERA Website development costs 7 6 21 — —
RERE Long-term investment 8 - 780 - -
RHBRAZEER  Investments in and amounts

ERHBARNE due from subsidiaries 9 - — - 1
JEMREBHIE - K Subscription receivables,

DR non-current portion 18 494,135 — 494,135 -
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 494,619 2212 494,135 1
RBEE Current assets
3 Inventories 10 26,399 94,936 - -
Eqke Deposits for purchase

of inventories - 27,387 - —
B AEN A Trade receivables 11 115 3,977 - -
BANHE  kER Prepayments, deposits

bl 5E and other receivables 12 16,745 7,893 707 30
ERHBARE Amounts due from subsidiaries 33 - — 3,000 —
JEIRETE - Subscription receivables,

BB current portion 18 271,410 — 271,410 —
BERARTER Pledged bank deposits 13 3,055 16,080 - 13,049
BERESEEBEE  Cashand cash equivalents 13 292,847 13,263 289,941 12
RBEELE Total current assets 610,571 163,536 565,058 13,091
REEE Current liabilities
RHRTEE Short-term bank borrowings 14 - (24,360) - -
BHEMTE Trade payables 15 (36,916) (121,018) - —
EirBEREM Accruals and other payables 16 (2,545) (7,441) (1,920) (71)

R
BB Receipts in advance (792) (5,256) - -
RBREHAR Current income tax liabilities (700) (5,536) - -
RBEEAR Total current liabilities (40,953) (163,611) (1,920) (71)
FRBEE/ (BR) Net current assets/(liabilities) 569,618 (75) 563,138 13,020

B8
EELEARDAMR  Total assets less

current liabilities 1,064,237 2,137 1,057,273 13,021
% R 2005/2006 b R B ERAERAA



Balance Sheets EE&BE®X

As at 31st March 2006 R -—ZEZFE~NF=H=+—H

ge NG|
Consolidated Company
ZEERE ZZTEHEF “EIRE %%
2006 2005 2006 2005
Fir st TET T TER TET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
ERHBARRE Amounts due to subsidiaries 33 - — - (3,907)
nakES Convertible bonds 17 (14,642) — (14,642) —
FRBDEBAE Total non-current liabilities (14,642) — (14,642) (3,907)
BEFE Net assets 1,049,595 2,137 1,042,631 9,114
i Equity
KRAREEREA Capital and reserves
AR IR I ik s attributable to equity
holders of the Company:
A Share capital 18 74,790 159,659 74,790 159,659
B Reserves 19 974,805 (157,522) 967,841 (150,545)
RS Shareholders’ equity 1,049,595 2,137 1,042,631 9,114

RZZEERFEAAZ+—HEESTEHE Approved by the Board of Directors on 21st June 2006:

Al
Al

Goéran Sture Malm B
FTEFRPNTEF HITEFERTHAAE
Goran Sture Malm Savio Chow Sing Nam

Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

MEALSREMBHREZBEESS o The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity e RREZE B X

For the year ended 31st March 2006 #Z - ZFTZENF=A=1—HIFZE

AR EERFEAEMN
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

[N
Share ] ]
capital Reserves Total
fit &t FE T FE T FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-SEMEMA-—Az &% Balance at 1st April 2004 159,638 (146,993) 12,645
FAEE Loss for the year — (10,443) (10,443)
BE 3, 50 & Translation adjustments — (86) (86)
—HRAREZLTEES Change in fair value of a long-term
investment = 548 548
A s —BRAREMER Realised upon disposal of a
long-term investment — (548) (548)
BT RREE M BT AR Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of warrants 21 — 21
R-ZEERFE=ZA=1+-8AR Balance at 31st March 2005 and
“EERENA-AZER 1st April 2005 159,659 (157,522) 2,137
FREE Loss for the year — (11,988) (11,988)
N Capital reorganisation 18 (159,529) 159,529 —
BITEER Issue of ordinary shares 18
— RAITRRRER — upon exercise of warrants 30 — 30
— REREGZ — under a subscription agreement 639 9,361 10,000
— REAFREE — under an open offer 159 2,341 2,500
BITEER Issue of preference shares 73,832 980,764 1,054,596
R ETER Share issue expenses
— EAlk — ordinary shares — (2,186) (2,186)
— BER — preference shares — (12,173) (12,173)
AR ES Convertible bonds
— =D — equity component 17 — 6,388 6,388
BE 58 B Translation adjustments — 291 291
R-BEXF=A=1+—H Balance at 31st March 2006
2 74,790 974,805 1,049,595
MEALSREMBHRERZBEDS - The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Zr8 R ERE R

For the year ended 31st March 2006 #Z - ZFTZENF=A=1—HIFZE

ZEEXRE —ZTRE
2006 2005
fit it FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BEERvBERE Cash flows from operating activities
EEMEL 2 BERILFE Net cash outflow generated from operations 27(a) (6,028) (52,249)
BRFE Interest paid (2,266) (5,056)
ERFRE R R ERER Mainland China enterprise income tax paid - (2,096)
EREFRE AR EREH Mainland China enterprise income tax refunded 172 473
BEEBERACREFE Net cash used in operating activities (8,122) (58,928)
REZBZHLRE Cash flows from investing activities
ER—BREZRE Dividend received from an investment — 659
REAREZEM Increase in long-term investment — (780)
HERBFMEHE Proceeds from disposal of investments — 26,447
HEHBARIZRE Cash disposed of by sale of subsidiaries,

M ERBRE net of proceeds of sale 27(c) (9,506) (1,396)
RERERRE Additions of plant and equipment 6 (113) (190)
HERE REEMERE Proceeds from sales of plant and equipment 27(b) 15 129
NE BUA B Additions of website development costs — (5)
B 7 & Interest received 1,000 580
BERRTERZHD Decrease in pledged bank deposits 13,025 18,359

REEBMELZREFE Net cash generated from investing activities 4,421 43,803
MEETH2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BATER Issue of ordinary shares 12,530 21
B RRESR Issue of convertible bonds 20,000 —
BOBAR Issue of preference shares 289,050 —
BRHETER Share issue expenses (13,935) —
MERHBTER New short-term bank loans — 6,615
BEEARITER Repayment of short-term bank loans (24,360) (9,450)
ERRBRTER RS FE Net decrease in trust receipts bank loans — (24,231)
RETIMEL/ (FR) Net cash generated from/(used in)
ZHREFHE financing activities 283,285 (27,045)
ReRBITEB2EM/ (HP)  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and bank
HE balances
ReRkReSEBEZEM/ Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(R 2) 279,584 (42,170)
FNzReRFTER Cash and bank balances at beginning of the year 13,263 55,433
FRZASRBALER Cash and bank balances at end of the year 292,847 13,263
MRt EEeMBRE BB - The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited Annual Report 2005/2006



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 & M5
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GENERAL INFORMATION

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in
trading of steel products, provision of procurement services for steel
products (including the operation of an e-commerce vertical portal
for the provision of online steel trading services and ancillary
services), and investment holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and of its principal place of
business is 78th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in HK dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on 21st June 2006.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) (collectively
the “HKFRS”). The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 & M5
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont’'d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the years. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of event
and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from these
estimates.

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

During the year ended 31st March 2006, the Group adopted
the new/revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS below,
which are relevant to its operations. The 2005 comparatives
have been amended as required, in accordance with the
relevant requirements.

BR G ENE10%
BB GEA S 165
BB G EAFI7H
BB GEAF215
BB BRI F 235
B G ENE245
BR G ENE27H
BB G ER 5325
BB G EAF 335
BB BT ERAF 365
BB BRI 5385
B G ENE39%
BRMBHREEN
o8
BEBBREES
F335%

BEABRANKRER
nE  BERRE
BE
NEEXRENTE
g8

BRIRE
RaRBLYBRR
ERTE: RERZT
FREF

BEFH

EVAE
ERTA: BARGE
SARR A7 32 1 9 32 i

EY i

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’d)

The adoption of HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 17, 21, 23, 24, 27,
33, 36, 38 and HKFRS 3 did not result in substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies. In summary:

o HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of certain
disclosures.

o HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 17, 23, 27, 33, 36 and 38 and
HKFRS 3 had no material effect on the Group’s policies.

. HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policy.
The functional currency of each of the consolidated
entities has been re-evaluated based on the guidance to
the revised standard. All the Group entities have the
same functional currency as the presentation currency
for the respective entity financial statements.

o HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties
and some other related party disclosures.

o The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy relating to the
classification and accounting treatment of financial assets
and liabilities commencing from the current year.

o The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in
accounting policy for share-based payments. In prior
years, the provision of share options to employees did
not result in an expense in the income statement.
Commencing from the current year, the Group expenses
the cost of share options in the income statement. The
transitional provision of HKFRS 2 requires the cost of
share options granted after 7th November 2002 and had
not yet vested on 1st January 2005 be expensed
retrospectively in the income statement of the respective
periods. However, as no share options were granted after
7th November 2002, the adoption of HKFRS 2 had no
material effect on the Group’s policy.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’d)

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in
accordance with the transition provisions in the respective
standards, whenever applicable. All standards adopted by the
Group require retrospective application other than:

o HKAS 16 — the initial measurement of an item of
property, plant and equipment acquired in an exchange
of assets transaction is accounted at fair value
prospectively only to future transactions;

o HKAS 21 — prospective accounting for goodwill and fair
value adjustments as part of foreign operations;

. HKAS 39 — does not permit recognition, derecognition
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities in
accordance with this standard on a retrospective basis;

o HKFRS 2 — only retrospective application for equity
instruments granted after 7th November 2002 and not
vested at 1st January 2005; and

o HKFRS 3 — prospectively after 1st January 2005.

The Group has not early adopted the following new Standards
or Interpretations or Amendments that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management anticipate that the adoption of these Standards
or Interpretations or Amendments in future periods will have
no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
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2. EERTHBEME H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
21 RBEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

FRANFT I, AEANERT B BB R R The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’d)

(&
BREGEIE1R BIRKk 225 HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
(B3T) BREHNBE (Amendment) Capital Disclosures
BRGEAE19% REAE 58 HKAS 19 Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans
(CHD) HTEREE (Amendment) and Disclosures
B g R E215 BINEBZFRE HKAS 21 Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
(&3T) (Amendment)
B8 5T 4RI 5 395 BHEERNDR S HKAS 39 Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
(B3) ZHEE T EH A (Amendment) Intra-group Transactions
X5E
B G ERIE 395 ATEER HKAS 39 The Fair Value Option
(&3T) (Amendment)
BEREENENRR HBEREH HKAS 39 and Financial Guarantee Contracts
BB 0 i 2 HKFRS 4
£ 45 (B3]) (Amendment)
BREBREEL BREME B HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Z15 (B7]) A8 (Amendment) Reporting Standards
ARUMBREENFT BEBERZIAR HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Rt Resources
ERMBREENETR &BIA: HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
RES=HE
BREBREEL BE-BZHRS HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
— RERE BEHE a Lease
BRI BREER HiEH  BRRE HKFRS-Int 5 Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning,
— REBE5H SEEREEMES Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
2B 2R Funds
% (BRMBRE SLEBEMS — HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a
EHREZEE) BYNEERET Specific Market — Waste Electrical and
— REE6N REMELEZE Electronic Equipment
&
S (AR BRE BEABSEFER HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under
FHREZESR) FoORBUHRE HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
— RBETH B R 45 2 B Hyperinflationary Economies
BKERERET
&
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31st March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment
that are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(c) Group companies (Cont’d)

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and

expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold improvements and furniture 3 to 5 years
— Office equipment 3 to 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are charged to the income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of finished goods of steel products and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the first-in, first-out method and comprises
the direct costs of merchandise and costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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2.10
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered as indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income
statement within general and administrative expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares are
classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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211 B8 2.11 Borrowings
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including fees
and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

The fair value of the liability portion of convertible bonds is
determined using market interest rates for equivalent non-
convertible bonds. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or
maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option. This is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects. The
liability portion is subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12

2.13

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.13

2.14

Employee benefits (Cont’'d)

(b) Pension obligations
The Group participates in defined contribution plans,
under which the Group pays contributions to state/
trustees-administered funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due.

(c) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. It recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15

2.16

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
value added tax, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales revenue

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and collectibility of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Commission from procurement and online steel

trading services

Commission from procurement and online steel trading
services is recognised when the services are rendered,
by reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as
a proportion of the total services to be provided.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery
of goods and provision of services are recorded as receipts in
advance.

Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and cash flow

and fair value interest-rate risk.

Management regularly manage the financial risks of the Group.
d the
vities

Because of the simplicity of the financial structure an
current operation of the Group, no major hedging acti
are undertaken by management.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk a
from various currency exposures, primarily with re
to US dollar and Chinese Renminbi. The Group cur
does not hedge its foreign exchange exposure.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit

risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sale

made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit

exposure to any financial institution.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group maintains sufficient cash and credit lines to

meet its liquidity requirement.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are interest-

bearing assets. The Group’s income and operating
flows can be affected by changes in market interest

The Group has no interest bearing liabilities that can be

affected by changes in market interest rates.
3.2 Fair value estimation

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
receivables and trade payables are assumed to approx

their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that

risks:

rising
spect
rently

S are

cash
rates.

trade
imate

is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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4.2
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates that have a significant risk

of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1

4.2

Useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimate useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and residual values and therefore depreciation expense
in the future periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer demand and competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each balance
sheet date.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT (Cont’d)

4.3

4.4

Estimated recoverability of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
and other debtors and the current market condition, and
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income taxes. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

5% SEGMENT INFORMATION

5.1

Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group is organised into three major business segments
— steel trading, procurement services for steel products
(including the operation of an e-commerce vertical portal for
the provision of online steel trading services and ancillary
services), and investment holding. The steel trading business
segment derives revenue from the sale of goods. The
procurement services for steel products business segment
derives commission income from procurement and online steel
trading services. The investment holding business segment
derives revenue from dividend income.
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5. ZEER #) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

51 FERHEN —XBI2E(E 5.1

Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d)

EBOBEBZHTWAT : The business segment results are analysed as follows:

BZE_ZZAF=A=1+—HLEEE
Year ended 31st March 2006

M E B B R A% REER
Steel Procurement Investment FER 0]
trading services holding Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EE — H4N  Turnover — Sales to
XEHE external customers 355,426 4,522 — 359,948
DL Segment results (5,615) 3,754 (10,450) (12,311)
H fth)F Y Other gains — net 3,608 — 1,443 5,051
RO EHR Unallocated expenses (6,439)
1 ET iR Operating loss (13,699)
M5ER Finance costs (3,296)
B P15 B A Loss before income tax (16,995)
E1E
Fr 15 7 #8512 Income tax credit 5,007
FANEE Loss for the year (11,988)
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 48,493 68 1,056,193 1,104,754
ROBEE Unallocated assets 436
1,105,190
afg Liabilities
NEARE Segment liabilities (38,311) — (16,580) (54,891)
ARAEERE Unallocated liabilities (704)
(55,595)
BEAMX Capital expenditure 64 — — 64
KBS Unallocated 49
113
e R Depreciation and
amortisation 367 15 — 382
P2l Unallocated 6
388
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5. ZEER #) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
51 FERBENX — ¥H28E (&) 5.1 Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d)
HE-_ZTAF=-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31st March 2005
M E 5 REE R 75 BEER
Steel  Procurement Investment FERE
trading services holding Total
FE T FE T FE T FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EEE — ¥4 Turnover — Sales to
BFIHE external customers 854,564 5,121 — 859,685
DEER Segment results (1,654) 604 (62) (1,112)
H At 5 U Other gains — net 515 — 1,572 2,087
KA ERA Unallocated expenses (416)
£ m Operating profit 559
B 5 & R Finance costs (5,056)
& BT 45 %4 A Loss before income tax (4,497)
&8
P58 % Income tax expense (5,946)
FRERE Loss for the year (10,443)
B E Assets
DEEE Segment assets 164,155 353 780 165,288
RKoREE Unallocated assets 460
165,748
=K1 Liabilities
HEEE Segment liabilities (163,235) — (71) (163,306)
RKoREE Unallocated liabilities (305)
(163,611)
EARAX Capital expenditure 191 5 780 976
e R Depreciation and
amortisation 1,016 27 — 1,043
& # 2005/2006 b & X B I KR AR QA A
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5% SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

5.1

5.2

Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d)

Unallocated costs represent corporate and administrative
expenses that cannot be allocated into the individual segment.

Segment assets consist primarily of plant and equipment,
subscription receivables, inventories, trade receivables and
operating cash.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group’s activities are conducted predominantly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Turnover by geographical segments
is determined on the basis of the destination of shipment of
goods for steel trading, location of service performed for
procurement services, location of sellers for online commission
income, and location of the investment for dividend income.
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52 XEHAHFMEA —

HEDH (E)

WEDERREZDTAOT :

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

5.2 Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
(Cont’d)

Geographical segments results are analysed as follows:

BE-ZZAF=ZA=+—-HLFE
Year ended 31st March 2006

A i

B Mainland Hith wE

Hong Kong China Others Total

FET FET FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

2R — BN Turnover — Sales to
EEHEE external customers 3,184 356,764 — 359,948
DEEE Segment results (15,199) 2,868 (868) (13,199)
KHOERERA Unallocated expenses (500)
K i Operating loss (13,699)
BE Assets 1,059,151 45,971 68 1,105,190
BEARMX Capital expenditure 49 64 — 113
HE-_TTAF=A=T—HILFE
Year ended 31st March 2005
R A

BB Mainland Efth FERC

Hong Kong China Others Total

FE T FE T FE T FE T

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

2R — BN Turnover — Sales to

EEHEE external customers 15,280 844,405 — 859,685
DIEE Segment results (586) 4,162 (2,601) 975
KHOERERA Unallocated expenses (416)
45 B85 7 Operating profit 559
BE Assets 1,891 163,373 484 165,748
EARAX Capital expenditure 61 910 5 976
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6. BERXR®E 6. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HENERESR
&M
Leasehold WAERME "E
improvements Office Motor mE
and furniture equipment vehicles Total
FHT FE T FE T F& T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZMEMA—H At 1st April 2004
KAE Cost 651 2,415 2,460 5,526
e Accumulated depreciation (362) (1,626) (616) (2,604)
REFE Net book amount 289 789 1,844 2,922
BE-_TZTREF=A Year ended 31st March 2005
=+—HIFE
HYREFE Opening net book amount 289 789 1,844 2,922
NE Additions 94 96 — 190
HE Disposals (67) (45) (104) (216)
HEME AR Disposal of subsidiaries (24) (41) (404) (469)
e Depreciation (143) (471) (402) (1,016)
MR IR E Closing net book amount 149 328 934 1,411
R-ZZRF=H At 31st March 2005
=+-H
KAE Cost 543 2,213 1,779 4,535
e Accumulated depreciation (394) (1,885) (845) (3,124)
REFE Net book amount 149 328 934 1,411
BE-ZEXRE=H Year ended
=+-HLEE 31st March 2006
B REFE Opening net book amount 149 328 934 1,411
wE Additions 40 73 — 113
& Disposals (28) — (10) (38)
HEWE AR Disposal of subsidiaries (90) (50) (495) (635)
nE Depreciation (62) (203) (108) (373)
HAREFE Closing net book amount 9 148 321 478
R-ZZEXREZA At 31st March 2006
=t+—AH
RA&E Cost 334 2,150 804 3,288
R E Accumulated depreciation (325) (2,002) (483) (2,810)
BREFE Net book amount 9 148 321 478

Depreciation expense of HK$373,000 (2005: HK$1,016,000) has been
included in general and administrative expenses.
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48 uh B B R A 7. WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT COSTS
FE&T

HK$’000
RZZETWHFMNA—H At 1st April 2004
B AR Cost 33,364
ESE 3] Accumulated amortisation (33,321)
BREFE Net book amount 43
HE-_ZZRAF=-A=+—HLFE Year ended 31st March 2005
B ¥ AR DA Opening net book amount 43
NE Additions 5
1 55 Amortisation (27)
B BREDFE Closing net book amount 21
RZETRF=A=+—H At 31st March 2005
B AME Cost 33,369
EEE 3 Accumulated amortisation (33,348)
R FE Net book amount 21
BE-_ZEEAE=-A=1+—-HLEE Year ended 31st March 2006
B RREDFE Opening net book amount 21
8 Amortisation (15)
MARERE Closing net book amount 6
R-EBEZEXF=HA=+—H At 31st March 2006
A E Cost 33,369
EE Accumulated amortisation (33,363)
REFE Net book amount 6

#$HF 15,0008 T (ZE 2 A F 27,000
BT Bt A—RBRETRER -

Amortisation expense of HK$15,000 (2005: HK$27,000) has been

included in general and administrative expenses.
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8. RHERE LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
R=ZBEXRF RZZETHF
=A=+—8© ER=ZF—E
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ELETIRE  KAE Unlisted investment, at cost — 780
RZZTTERAF=A=+—H ' FLmKERE As at 31st March 2005, unlisted investment represented a 10%
REEILTREE BRI SHHAR DT Z210% interest in Foshan Nanhai STS Metal Co., Ltd., a joint venture
o BILT SRR TFHH AR AR A enterprise established in Mainland China, held by Greater China
—HRPRERMK L 2EERE  BAEE Metal Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Foshan
2 &= & [ff B A & Greater China Metal Nanhai STS Metal Co., Ltd., is principally engaged in manufacturing,
Limited¥ 8 - T2XBREE MIRE processing and trading of cold rolled stainless steel.
BRETFHE o
RBE-_ZTEZR"F=A=+—HILEFEARN " During the year ended 31st March 2006, the Group disposed of its
N & B & = X Greater China Metal entire interest in Greater China Metal Limited and consequently its
LimitedZ 2 30# % - B S EREH LT investment in the 10% interest in Foshan Nanhai STS Metal Co.,
FEE R HE AR QA 2 10%E %= % Ltd.
9. REMRHWEBARAREWKE LKA INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
—ZEEXRE —EThHF
2006 2005
FET FHE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEETRRG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 3,500 3,500
i ENGIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 145,308 135,876
B BEHREEE Less: Accumulated impairment
losses (148,808) (139,375)
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9. REMNHMEBATANREWKMBATFHE 9. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
(#&) (Contd)

UTAR_ZZERF=RA=+—BWERF

The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31st March 2006:

ZRE
AEEMBERA
8 R AL it B EzAI
EEERER Percentage
Place of BRTBRAFESE of equity
incorporation TEERK Particulars of interest
8 and kind of Principal issued share held by the
Name legal entity activities capital Group
BRREBR AR () EEELHS  BRAA REZK 1REREE 100%
Ace Level Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1T Sk
Limited (i) limited liability 1 Ordinary
company share of
US$1 each
i-AsiaB2B Group Limited (i) REEZEHS  ARARA REZR 1SR EE 100%
British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1E T2 TRk
limited liability 1 Ordinary
company share of
US$1 each
ISA Group Holdings Limited EEELHS  BRAA REZRK 10,0000% & ik A& 100%
British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1T 2 E Rk
limited liability 10,000 Ordinary
company share o
US$1 each
iSteel Holdings (B.V.l.) Limited RBRZEHS  ERAA REZER 18 & A (& 100%
British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1% Rk
limited liability 1 Ordinary
company share of
US$1 each
DHMMT)EEFRR A HERLHS  BRAT REZK 1R G REE 100%
iSteel (MT) Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1E T2 Emik
limited liability 1 Ordinary
company share of
US$1 each
TMEEEFRHFT () i ARRA BEEFEHERAAR 2REREE 100%
BRAA Hong Kong, BUAETREENE S 18 T 2 & Ak
iSteelAsia (Hong Kong) Limited limited liability Operation of an 2 Ordinary
company e-commerce shares of
vertical portal HK$1 each
business for
online steel trading
F ¥ 2005/2006 I T X BIERAER QA



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 & M5

RERMBARAREKMBATNRE o

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

(#&) (Contd)
AEBFERA
o B 3L i 26 % EzAo
EEERER Percentage
Place of BRTBRAFER of equity
incorporation TEXR Particulars of interest
£ and kind of Principal issued share held by the
Name legal entity activities capital Group
iSteelAsia Limited RERLZEE  BRAA BEBFRBEMRAPI AL 100 & R E 100%
British Virgin Islands, ETALERME S 1ZTZ LBk
limited liability Operation of an 10 Ordinary
company e-commerce shares of
vertical portal US$1 each
business for
online steel trading
THORERRMBEEF R BERRQA HME S 1REREE 100%
RBER DA Macau, limited Trading of steel 100,000 7% 2
iSteelAsia Logistics Macao liability company &R
Commercial Offshore 1 Ordinary
Company Limited share of
MOP100,000
each
MetalAsia Holdings Limited REEZEHS  ARARA BEER 2,000 B R EE 100%
British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1E T2 LRk
limited liability 2,000 Ordinary
company shares of
US$1 each
CERYRERERAR i ARRA HM E 5 K AR R MR S 4R BREE 100%
Metal Logistics Company Hong Kong, Trading of steel 18T 2 E Rk
Limited limited liability and provision of 4 Ordinary
company procurement shares of
services HK$1 each
North Asia Strategic (HK) EBE ARRA == 1R GREE 100%
Limited (i) Hong Kong, Management 18T 2 ik
limited liability 1 Ordinary
company share of
HK$1 each
THREBERES (L8)ER FEIAM - BRAA M E S 200,000% 7T 100%
A7 (i) Mainland China, Trading of steel US$200,000

Shanghai iSteelAsia
International Limited (ii)

limited liability
company

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
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9. REMNHMEBATANREWKMBATFHE 9. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

(#&) (Contd)
AEBFERA
o B 3L i 26 % EzAo
EEERER Percentage
Place of BRTBRAFER of equity
incorporation TEXR Particulars of interest
£ and kind of Principal issued share held by the
Name legal entity activities capital Group
RERERBETHEREE 5 hEAM FRAF WM E S 200,000 7T 100%
BRAA (i) Mainland China, Trading of steel US$200,000
Tianjin iSteelAsia International limited liability
Limited (ii) company
THBERRA EEELHS  BRAR REER 1REREE 100%
Ya Gang Wang Co. Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1% SRk
limited liability 1 Ordinary
company share of
US$1 each
FAMBET (LB ER FERH - BRAF HE 5 200,000% 75 100%
R A (i) Mainland China, Trading of steel US$200,000
Yu Tai Steel (Shanghai) limited liability
Co. Ltd. (ii) company
Hfat - Notes:
(i) ZERRZRMARRRAEERE - Hit (i) Shares of these companies are held directly by the Company. Shares
DRIZBRDTIEERE ° of the other companies are held indirectly.
(i) WHEDRPBEAMKZZINEBEERE - (i)  These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established in Mainland
KEHAE+ERA+FEE T ——F5 = China to operate for periods from 10 to 50 years up to 2011 to 2052.

TR_F -
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10. & — X&H 10. INVENTORIES — GROUP
R-ZBEXRE RZZETRF
=H=+-—H =A=+—H
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2006 2005
F#ET FE&T
HK$°000 HK$’000
R 2 S Rolled flat steel products 26,399 94,936
FERAERAI LI ABEEEMKAZ The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
& ¥ 5 354,154,000 0 (Z T T A F of goods sold amounted to HK$354,154,000 (2005: HK$828,580,000).
828,580,000/ T) °
11. BEZERRIE 11. TRADE RECEIVABLES
®=a
Consolidated
R-ZBEEXRE R-_ZETRF
=A=+-—8 =A=+—8
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 W IE Trade receivables 589 4,455
R MR TE R (B B E Less: Provision for impairment
of receivables (474) (478)
115 3,977
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11. EFEWRNIE (&) 11. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
AEEBZHE—REEINER BT EAIE The Group generally requires sales to be settled by cash upon delivery,
FPEAEER TEEHNFI0EZ90H T with some cases granting a credit period of 30 to 90 days. Aging analysis
L BOBRWRBEZRESTWT ! of trade receivables is as follows:
RE
Consolidated
R-BEXRE RZZTRHF
=A=+-8B =A=+-8
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
0£90H 0 to 90 days — 3,959
91£180H 91 to 180 days — 3
1812 270H 181 to 270 days 115 15
271£365H 271 to 365 days — —
BB 365H Over 365 days 474 478
589 4,455
ESRWARE, FHEEEAFEES ° The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values.
HE_ZTZF_A=1+—HILEFE &% During the year ended 31st March 2006, the Group recognised a
5t E & 5 e WK IR B R &5 1821,0007% loss of HK$21,000 (2005: $1,761,000) for the impairment of its trade
TL(ZZTZRF 0 1,761,000570) © BER receivables. The loss has been included in general and administrative
RBERAFA—REITBER - expenses in the income statement.
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12. BEARE  ReRHMEKRRE 12. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
RE KA T
Group Company
—EERE —TTRHF —EERE —TTRF
2006 2005 2006 2005
F#ET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TE S R IE Prepayments 91 5,016 — 30
E& Deposits 328 299 — —
JE WA 2 Interest receivable 707 — 707 —
FEU AT B A &5 E  Amounts due from former
subsidiaries 15,392 — — —
HEHNE AR ZKRE Balance of consideration
g for disposal of subsidiaries 98 1,536 — —
H fth i W kI8 Other receivables 129 1,042 — —
16,745 7,893 707 30
HMERRE2 FAEEEAFEBE ° The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair
values.

13. BERALEEEERSEFEITENR 13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS
rE ¥ NN
Group Company

—EERE —ZEThHEF —ETXRE —EThHF
2006 2005 2006 2005
FETT FE T FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ROTRFHEES Cash at bank and on hand 10,748 13,263 7,842 12
HHERITER Short-term bank deposits 282,099 — 282,099 —
292,847 13,263 289,941 12
BHEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 3,055 16,080 — 13,049
295,902 29,343 289,941 13,061
RZTERNF=ZA=+—H ' RHRITEX As at 31st March 2006, the effective interest rate on short-term
ZEBAELN AEL40%(ZETHEF | &) bank deposits was approximately 4.0% (2005: Nil) per annum; these

MWEEFERZFHEHR AR (ZEZH deposits have an average maturity of 30 days (2005: Nil).

FE) -
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13.

RERBESERERFEABRTEN
(%)

BEBFREFERAREBRITEE 2 ER
m MEERRTERZ2ERFNELN A
43%(ZFZTHF 0.85%) : WEFHZF
HEEA /1828 (ZZZHEF  183RH) (A
Kta£31) -

ReRkReEERBATIEEREM

13.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS (Cont’d)

The pledged deposits were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
banking facilities and the effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposits was approximately 4.3% (2005: 0.85%) per annum, these
deposits have an average maturity of 182 days (2005: 183 days)
(see note 31).

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

currencies:
KE ¥ YN

Group Company
—EERE —ZETRF —EEREF —TTRF
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong dollar 291,555 883 289,933 9
ETT US dollar 4,173 16,761 8 13,052
AR ([AR®]) Renminbi (“RMB”) 174 11,698 — —
H A Others — 1 — —
295,902 29,343 289,941 13,061

FEBUARBREU RS RRSEER
B RN R EAMRTT - KM ERUAR
BREMZERRINERBECEHTERA
b 78 52 R B8 P 3 TR A8 4 2 S0 EE 2 71 AR Bl B
fER 5] P FL IR

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are
deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China Government.
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14. BE 14. BORROWINGS

R-BEXREF R-ZZTTHF
=A=+—8© ER=ZF—E
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

mE Current
EHRTEER Short-term bank borrowings — 24,360
— 24,360

RHRITERASEMRITERTER -

FARBRITEEOR—FREE - BUA
RIS BB -

REEBZ2ERAMENT :

The short-term bank borrowings were secured by pledged bank
deposits.

All short-term borrowings were due within one year and denominated
in Renminbi.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

R=ZZBAREF RZZETRF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
As at As at

31st March 31st March
2006 2005

FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000

RHRITEER

Short-term bank borrowings — 5.5% - 5.6%
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15. ESEAHRIE 15. TRADE PAYABLES

BEZRENREZERDTAT ! The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:
R-ZBEXRE RZTETRF
=HA=+—H =A=+—8H
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2006 2005
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0Z£90H 0 to 90 days 36,916 18,272
91£180H 91 to 180 days — 93,467
181£270H 181 to 270 days — 8,079
271&365H 271 to 365 days — —
1Z=24F 1 to 2 years — 1,200
36,916 121,018

16. EtEEREMESRE 16. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
RE b NN
Group Company
—EEREF —TTRF —EERE —TERF
2006 2005 2006 2005
FETT FE&T FETT FE&T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
rEBRZES Accrual for operating

=N expenses 2,020 2,657 1,920 71
R B Provision for claim — 2,977 — —
H {h & 1~ ZOE Other payables 525 1,807 — —
2,545 7,441 1,920 71
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17.

AR R ES

R=ZZTZTRAFENA ARRETHEESR
20,000,000 ;T 2 AJ AR &5 © xS AR
BEHABTBEMM -

BEEBR-_ZT—ZTFN\ARHREFHEATE
B E0.1566B TR EHF LR AAE KL
127,714,000/ & IR E (& /& 0.017% T 2 &
Mot BEABRERAEENR_-ZT
+E+-—AtHEREZIRIS HAERZ
& o

B EHS R LRHBH 2 AFETRET
EHBEE - BEDD % UBHRAA
B - BEHS 2 AT (E 5 AR B R
2 H B AR5 4 FI R 8.0%5H B - #43 (B1
W3R RIS 2 RIE) DH AR B
SR 2% o

REERERERL TRRES T
R it

17. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
In August 2005, the Company issued convertible bonds at face value
of HK$20,000,000, which are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The bonds will mature in August 2010 or can be converted into a
total of approximately 127,714,000 shares in the Company, with a
par value of HK$0.01 each, at the holders’ option, at HK$0.1566 per
share. In addition, the holders have the right to request the Group to
redeem in whole or in part the outstanding bonds on 7th December
2007.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined upon issuance of the bonds. The liability
component is subsequently stated at amortised cost. The fair value
of the liability component was calculated using a market interest
rate for a term loan offered to the Group of 8.0% per annum. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in shareholders’ equity as other reserves.

The convertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet are calculated
as follows:

R-ZBZAREF
ZA=+-H
At 31st March
2006
FET
HK$°000
RZZZERFNANBRET Face value of convertible bonds issued
ARKES 2HE on 8th August 2005 20,000
EmEHBD Equity component (6,388)
RZZZRFNANBYLHER Liability component on initial recognition
BEZ S at 8th August 2005 13,612
FEFHF R X Accrued interest expense 1,030
RZZETZRF=ZRA=+—HZE8EHS Liability component at 31st March 2006 14,642

B2 R B TR B B A R A5 & (& 26
DB F E8.0%:1 & -

Interest expense on the bonds is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 8.0% to the
liability component.
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18. A& 18. SHARE CAPITAL
ZER BER
Ordinary shares Preference shares
ZER BER
B B
K& E Ordinary BR3 2 H  Preference
Number shares Number shares W
of shares capital of shares capital Total
Fig  FET FR  TFET FE&T
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Authorised
RZBEMEMA-AR At 1st April 2004 and
“EERE=f=1-H 31st March 2005 4,000,000 400,000 — — 400,000
kAZEA Capital reorganisation 36,000,000 — — — -
EREER Creation of preference shares - — 30,000,000 300,000 300,000
R-ZERE=A=1-H At 31st March 2006 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
BT5AH — Analysed as —
SRAB0OIBTZEER Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 40,000,000 400,000 - - 400,000
SRABIOIBTZELR Preference shares of HK$0.01 each - — 30,000,000 300,000 300,000
40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
BB Issued
RZEZEMEME-A At 1st April 2004 1,596,384 159,638 — — 159,638
ATERREEMEIRN  lssue of shares upon exercise of
warrants 206 21 - - 21
RZEEHEE=F=1-H At 31st March 2005 1,596,590 159,659 — — 159,659
BRAEA (fiza() Capital reorganisation (Note a(i)) (1,580,919)  (159,529) - - (159,529)
BAEER Issue of ordinary shares
— RiTERRER (H1728)  — upon exercise of warrants (Note 28) 298 30 - - 30
— RERBHE (F/2a(i)  — under a subscription agreement
(Note (i) 63,857 639 - = 639
— BEABERE (WHa(ii)  — under an open offer (Note afii)) 15,969 159 - - 159
BTELR Issue of preference shares - — 17,383,167 73,832 73,832
RZEEARE=A=1-H At 31st March 2006 95,795 958 7,383,167 73,832 74,790
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18. B (&) 18. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

(a) RZZETRFLA+THTAB  ARAR (a)
HEHBRRERFNAE EHETIRS ¢

On 14th July 2005, the Company approved the following

(i)

(if)

—  #BE100 K EEO0.10

B2 EEBRA AR
E{E10.078 7T 2 B 1D K BE
EEAEEEREETE
BB 2 H R A A9.99
PETCHR AR R B TR
KN BB EEITEHE
B 5 2 E{E B & 8% 10.0%
TCHURZ & 8R0.015 7T

—  1%3R%E5136,000,000,000

B & R (E0.018 T2 &
A AR IR R RDARE
B A =2 B K 2
400,000,000 7T :

— HHEARRZEHEOE

B % 1% %49 11,099,000/
JC

1% = it ) AR A R v S AR 1 0
BREMSERBREARDA
ZEHARBGBE  WHEAAFZ
REEEEE - MEERS R
4 A& 159,529,000/ T &
11,099,000 7T * BI& X4 A
170,628,0005% 7T

BIAE#ETRAEHEE  US
% 72 B (8 0.1566/6 7T % 17 5 X
HEOIBILZERGA XD
63,857,000k *+ #FAE E X
10,000,000 7T :

transactions at its special general meeting:

(i)

(if)

—  For every 100 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
consolidate into one share of HK$10.0 and
thereafter reduce the Company’s issued share
capital by way of cancellation of the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$9.99 on each issued
consolidated share such that the par value of all
the issued consolidated shares would be reduced
from HK$10.0 each to HK$0.01 each;

— Increase in the Company’s authorised share capital
back to its original amount of HK$400,000,000 by
the creation of additional 36,000,000,000 ordinary
share of HK$0.01 each;

—  Cancel the Company’s entire share premium
reserve of approximately HK$11,099,000;

The credits arising from the aforementioned capital
reduction of approximately HK$159,529,000 and from
the cancellation of the share premium reserve of
HK$11,099,000, totaling approximately HK$170,628,000,
were transferred to the Company’s contributed surplus
account and were set off against the Company’s
accumulated losses;

Issue an aggregate of approximately 63,857,000 shares
with a par value of HK$0.01
aforementioned capital reorganisation, at a subscription

each, after the

price of HK$0.1566 each, raising approximately
HK$10,000,000;
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18. BRA (&)

(a)

(b)

(%)

(i) BEHKRE - R EM#ETRAE
BEHREERA —RROHEET
— BB Z2EE - UNEBRK
0.1566/% T 2 RIEERE T K
HEE0.OIBTT 2K - EAR
S RiET LM AEMA
& + ZNA A B 17 415,969,000
f% & A {E0.017%8 7T 2 D
& % #92,500,000/% 7T ° Van
Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited
RERBAEARRARED
18.9% 2 EERFR - BB HILE
=
R-EERE-_A=1A AQFH
JE 1% 3 1B 45 5% 30,000,000,000% & f%
E{E0.01% 7T 2 8 5 IR if 1€ i H A '
% ZX 300,000,000 7T °

RZTZEZF-_AR=H KARQA)%*
1746 ££497,383,167,000/% & i E &

0.01 B L Z AR EREEN - AJERA
L& REESR0.1566/8 LR -
48584 /1,156,200,00058 T °

BEBRBTAIERD - WR—RELEK
HA—BREBERZ B ABAAR
AEBER - RETEME - BER
RERARREBRERRFHA -

18. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(Cont’d)

(iiiy  An offer to shareholders to subscribe new shares with a
par value of HK$0.01 each, at a subscription price of
HK$0.1566 each, on the basis of one new share for
holder of one share after the aforementioned capital
reorganisation. In this transaction, the Company issued
approximately 15,969,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, after
the aforementioned capital reorganisation, raising
approximately HK$2,500,000. Such an offer was
underwritten by Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited, a then
substantial shareholder which held approximately 18.9%
of the Company’s equity interest;

On 20th February 2006, the Company approved an increase
in its authorised share capital by HK$300,000,000 by the
creation of 30,000,000,000 preference shares of HK$0.01 each.

In February and March 2006, the Company issued a total of
approximately 7,383,167,000 non-redeemable preference
shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each, at a subscription
price of HK$0.1566 each through placement, for an aggregated
amount of approximately HK$1,156,200,000.

The preference shares are non-redeemable and are convertible
into ordinary shares in the Company at a conversion ratio of
one preference share into one ordinary share. The preference
shares will rank pari passu with the ordinary shares of the
Company with regards to dividend.
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18. BRA (&)

REEEHRBAD WHSHEURS
XfF o ARBEERETKE D BIR
ZETRFZAR= ANE B BR
o HH=HHHREBES IR =F
TREFEAZ+N\B#ELN12EA - 24
8 A K368 A KE - MRE—RAF
(ZZEZTEF A+ NR)HEZHE
F(ZEENF_A=-_+N\H)A ' &
ANAEIARBERTATE RE 2 RERA R
D75%F AR E » BIAQ A &R U
BREREBREFREN 25 BHRIE -
AT BMEARAEERRE —RE
ZIEF 2 HRIE - EBRKRNBRIE
ERE=ZRF (ZEZTNF_A=-+
NAB) BT R R IRE LR AL R RE
(AEREERBE) IE -

EEBIG N B R AT BB A=
RETRNEBE (ZF—FF
A= +HAR) GABRSEAL) BB X
A EB -

B B R TR 2 R SR
AR

18. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

(b)

(Cont’d)

The subscription price is payable in cash by the subscribers in
four equal instalments. The first was received by the Company
in February and March 2006, upon completion of the
subscription. The remaining three instalments are receivable
approximately 12 months, 24 months and 36 months,
respectively, after 28th February 2006. In the event that by the
first anniversary (28th February 2007) or the second
anniversary (28th February 2008), the Company is unable to
utilise at least 75% of the subscription monies previously
received for investments, the Company will not be entitled to
receive the instalments which would otherwise be due on such
anniversaries. However, even if the Company is not entitled to
receive the instalments on the first and second anniversaries,
the remaining unpaid balance will be receivable by the third
anniversary (28th February 2009) or, if earlier, upon the
conversion of the preference shares into ordinary shares.

The preference shares will be automatically converted into
ordinary shares upon the listing of the converted ordinary
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, or on the
fourth anniversary (28th February 2010), whichever is earlier.

The subscription receivables recognised in the balance sheet
is calculated as follows:

RZZBBARF

ZA=t-H

As at

31st March

2006

FET

HK$’000

JE W3R B 3K IE Subscription receivables 867,153
R RF B Less: Future interest (101,608)
ERRERE A TE Subscription receivables at fair value 765,545
i 3EMBNEL D Less: Non-current portion (494,135)
VEk:iPa) Current portion 271,410

EWRERIAZ X TFETINETEE
REFEE - WIRAKEMERMK 2R
TTEEMIHF M E6.5%:H o

The fair values of the subscription receivables were determined upon

issuance of the preference shares and calculated using a market
interest rate for the banking facilities granted to the Group of 6.5%
per annum.

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2005/2006



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 & M5

19. f&B 19. RESERVES
BEIT ¢ Movements were:
rEH Group
BEEf  RAEY
EE: fif B
RHEE  BARH kEE:  BARE Asset Cumulative  ZitFE
Share  Contributed  Convertible Capital  revaluation translation Accumulated BE
premium surplus bonds reserve reserve adjustments losses Total

TERL TEL TERL TEL TER TEL TER TEL
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZEMEME-A &8 Balance at 1st April 2004 11,099 - - 2,700 - 105 (160,897) (146,993
ARAEREEA Loss attributable to equity

EfbER holders of the Company - - - - - - (10,443)  (10,443)
EXAE Translation adjustments - - - - - (86) - (86)
“BREREZD Change in fair value of

TEEY a long-term investment - - - - 548 - - 548
HE-ERHR Realised upon disposal of

EMER a long-term investment - - - - (548) - - (548)
RZZZEE=F=1-H  Balance at 31st March

268 2005 11,009 - - 2,700 - 19 (I71360)  (157,522)
ARAEEREA Loss attributable to equity

EEEE holders of the Company - - - - - - (11,988)  (11,988)
RAES (fi18) Capital reorganisation (Note 16) (11,099) 170,628 - - - - - 159,529
BHETEE Elimination of accumulated

(Fir#t18) losses (Note 18) —  (161,644) - - - - 161,644 -
BEER Issue of ordinary shares

—RERE — under a subscription

iE] agreement 9,361 - - - - - - 9,361

—REDHRE — under an open offer 2,34 - - - - - - 2,34
BAELR Issue of preference shares 980,764 - - - - - - 980,764
RA®TER Share issue expenses

—EER — ordinary shares (2,186) - - - - - - (2,186)

—BiR — preference shares (12,173) - - - - - - (12,173)
TRRES Convertible bonds

— &35 (frit17) — equity component (Note 17) - - 6,388 - - - - 6,388
EifE— 58 Translation adjustments — net - - - - - 291 - 291

WZEEXEZF=1-H  Balance at 31st March
L& 2006 978,107 8,984 6,388 2,700 - 3

=

0 (21684) 974,805
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19. f#fE (&) 19. RESERVES (Cont’d)
AT Company
BEEf
TER e
R EE BABH &% Asset  EiEH
Share Contribution ~ Convertible  revaluation Accumulated ag
premium surplus bonds reserve losses Total

TET TEL TET TET TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=BSMEMA-B2&#%  Balance at 1st April 2004 11,099 - - —  (155693)  (144,504)
AREEREAA Loss attributable to equity

EfREE holders of the Company - — — - (5,951) (5,951)
~BRERAZR Change in fair value of

TEEY a long-term investment - - - 548 - 548
REE-BRAR Realised upon disposal of

EMER a long-term investment - - - (548) - (548)
RZBBRF=A=+-H2&H Balance at 31st March 2005 11,099 - - —  (161,644)  (150,545)
ARAEERAA Loss attributable to equity

R holders of the Company - - - - (25,638)  (25,638)
RAEA (fifF18) Capital reorganisation (Note 18) (11,099) 170,628 - - - 159,529
EHRTE Elimination of accumulated

B (Ht18) losses (Note 18) - (161,644) - - 161,644 -
BAEBR Issue of ordinary shares

—REZERGE — under a subscription agreement 9,361 - - - - 9,361

—RENHRE — under an open offer 2,31 - - - - 2,31
BROBER Issue of preference shares 980,764 = = = = 980,764
RORTER Share issue expenses

—EER — ordinary shares (2,186) - - - - (2,186)

— iR — preference shares (12,173) = - - - (12,173)
TRRES Convertible bonds

— E&EH2 (Wit17) — equity component (Note 17) - - 6,388 - - 6,388

W-BEXE=B=t-H Balance at 31st March
&8 2006 978,107 8,984 6,388 - (25,638) 967,841
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20. HftpFW=E 20. OTHER GAINS — NET
—EEXRE —TTRF
2006 2005
FER F#E T
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEMEREZRBEBA Dividend income from
unlisted investments — 659
MEKA Interest income 1,707 580
BEIRRZEE Write-back of provision for claim 2,977 —
HERE 2 W= Gain on disposal of investments — 911
HEMRBARZET (EiE) Profit/(loss) on disposal of
(Kt:£27(c)) subsidiaries (Note 27(c)) 98 (63)
Efth Others 269 —
5,051 2,087

HIVERRGELRR  ARBEZERRAR
BERERABRRMFBPRELESE  RPRE
wERED -

The write-back of provision for claim resulted from the settlement of
a legal case and the Company’s Directors consider the provision
was no longer necessary.

21. BEHESEZER 21. EXPENSES BY NATURE

AAHERDHEAUNR —BRRITEERZ Expenses included in selling and distribution expenses and general

BRASNMAT and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:
ZEEXREF —ETHF
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE R ZETE Depreciation of plant and
equipment 373 1,016
A uh R B K AR EE B Amortisation of website
development costs 15 27
ERKA (KiF22) Employment costs (Note 22) 6,139 9,416
MEZEEHRNER Operating lease rental
of premises 1,186 1,152
B 5 B IERE Impairment of trade receivables 21 1,761
FERE Provision for inventories — 1,448
1% 21 A B Auditors’ remuneration 900 500
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BF %5 ¥ 2R B R

22. EAKAK 22. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

—EEAE —TERF
2006 2005
FET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e TENRZER Salaries, wages and allowances 6,072 9,185

R KAE Retirement benefits
—RE # ARG E — defined contribution scheme 67 231
6,139 9,416

(a)

AEBERHEEEEREESE —THH
BUXTEANERB 25 ERTE
([BER:TE]) @ &8 A—EHRE
HREE - RIBARESE  A5H
(BEx) REEEZEEGRLEEEH
WA (ERRBBERGELES T E
15&Bl) 2 5% M T BI{EH 3R - ALl
FREB 2 RAHEK LR A1,000%
T MEREIMER T B ERE -

KRB A2 R A KRG - RNEEE
AEPBEANMESRBXEB) 2B
TR - EERHEEAH ©H6%E
20% R MASEBEERZEH 2L
14%ZE 22 5% 50 BR & F L3N -
BAEZHERERRAKSKENKRER
Ao ZERAREHRINEBEEETM
RREEXNEZHEKS -

(a)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The monthly contribution of each of the employer
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The employees contribute
approximately 6% to 20% of their basic salaries, while the
Group contributes approximately 14% to 22.5% of such salaries
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond these
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired

employees.
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22. ERAKA (&) 22. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) EEREREEAEHS (b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
BHE-_ZT"F=-A=1+—HLFE The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31st
BEEZHMESOT March 2006 is set out below:

BIRGHE 2
EEHK
Employer’s
contribution
to
we e retirement FER-G)
Fees Salaries scheme Total
FHET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
UTES Executive directors
Goran Sture Malm Mr. Géran Sture Malm (i)

T () 309 103 8 420
AR %A ) Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam (i) 93 593 8 694
Henry Cho Kim4t 4 (i)  Mr. Henry Cho Kim (i) 93 250 8 351
BAE v 5 Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai 93 — 5 98
BRBELE Mr. Desmond Fu Hay Ching — 514 — 514
FHTES Non-executive director
David Michael Faktor ~ Mr. David Michael Faktor (ii)

5 (i) 17 — = 17
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
SRERE Mr. Philip Ma King Huen 97 — — 97
B Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching 121 — — 121
BRTEE(®) Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping (i) 93 — — 93
HER LA (i) Mr. Kennedy Wong Ying Ho (ii) 17 — — 17

933 1,460 29 2,422
(i) R-ZEERFNANLBEZE (i)  Appointed on 9th August 2005

iy RZZTZRFNANLAEFMT (i)  Resigned on 9th August 2005
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22. ERAKA (&) 22. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) EBEREARAEEAEMS (&) (b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Cont’d)
HE-_ZTTRAF=A=1+—HLFE The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31st
BEEZHFMEIOT March 2005 is set out below:

RINGHEIZ
EEHR
Employer’s
we g4 contribution B
Fees Salary to pension Total
FET FiET FiET FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
UTES Executive directors
BAE e 4 A Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai — — — —
BRELE Mr. Desmond Fu Hay Ching — 1,855 — 1,855
R £+ (i) Ms. Miriam Yao Che Li (i) — — — —
FHTES Non-executive director
David Michael Faktor ~ Mr. David Michael Faktor
TE 10 — — 10
e KR 5 & (iv) Mr. Daniel Takuen Shih (iv) 1 — — 1
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
SRERE Mr. Philip Ma King Huen 10 — — 10
i L AE Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching 40 — — 40
HERRRAE Mr. Kennedy Wong Ying Ho 10 — — 10
71 1,855 - 1,926
(i) R-ZZZTNFSA=THEIE (iii)  Resigned on 30th June 2004
(iv) RZZTWEFEEA - +NHE(T (iv) Resigned on 29th April 2004
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22. ERAKA (&) 22. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (Cont'd)
(c) EEEEHFAL (c) Five highest paid individuals
AEBRAFEANERR ZAEA The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
TEEIR (ZETRF 1R)ES the Group for the year including 3 (2005: 1) directors whose
EMeE R EXE2RZAOMARE - emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
R TESR2E (ZETHF | 48) A The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2005: 4)
TZMewmT individuals during the year are as follows:
ZEBAREF —TTRF
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEAH & RERM Basic salaries and allowances 1,304 2,191
B4 Bonuses 491 —
RINE &l 2 (B E K Employer’s contributions
to retirement scheme 12 24
1,807 2,215
HEMESETHAEHERN : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
—EEARE —TTREF
2006 2005
Z %1,000,0007% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 4
1,000,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 —
2 4
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23. BKEA 23. FINANCE COSTS
—EBXRE —ETRHF
2006 2005
FET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B X H Interest expense
— EREFANEZHERZ — Interest on bank loans
RITEHRFE wholly repayable within
five years 1,112 1,676
— BN —MEREEQR — Interest on amount due to
KIEZF B a related company 1,154 3,380
— RAEFEATERZ — Convertible bonds
AR ES (A at17) redeemable after
five years (Note 17) 1,030 —
3,296 5,056
24. FrBH (BE) XH 24. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
RAREREHNERERBEEE_T— The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2016. No
FoARAEEARBZE-_TTF=A=1 provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
— B IEFE RN EAMNE BT ST 2 ER had no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the
FmAl - WA |HEEAFESTELEE (= year ended 31st March 2006 (2005: Nil). Subsidiaries established in
TTRF : ) o LB B A K 2 M Mainland China are subjected to Mainland China enterprise income
BAREERN T15%E3B% 2 HE (ZTT tax at rates ranging from 15% to 33% (2005: 15% to 33%). Taxation
T4 : 15%% 33%) S AN B A 3t 1 25 P 15 on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland China) profits has
Bl o BHN (BB K B AR M) T8 Ty s AR been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
FE 2 b ETFERT & A R AN & B A & Fr7E B the applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
RZBTERAMEGTE - the Group operates.
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24. FRER (BE) XH (&) 24. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Cont’d)

RiFaRERD (BE) SHZAEHE

The amounts of income tax (credit)/expense charged to the

& consolidated income statement represent:
ZEBAREF —ZEThHF
2006 2005
FET F#E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHHRE Current taxation
A b 1 3 Mainland China enterprise
FriS %% income tax
— (Bm) #BfE — (Write-back)/provision (5,007) 1,463
— BEBIE — Deferred taxation — 4,483
(5,007) 5,946

AEE 2 R A0 B 1R 2 IR B4R FRUE AR AR
SEERZMETHREFEZERSEL

The taxation on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

EZEIME ¢ applicable to loss of the Group as follows:
ZEBAREF —ZTTREF
2006 2005
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R P15 %50 A B 18 Loss before income tax (16,995) (4,497)
REAREBAME  BEREBZ Tax calculated at the weighted
MEFHE M EFHE 2 BIA average domestic tax rates
applicable to losses in the
respective places/countries (1,634) (308)
-2 Effect of
— EERBZIWA — income not subject to tax 27 (36)
— PAHIB 2 — expenses not deductible
for tax 1 338
— AERZBELEREBEEE — deferred tax assets not
recognised 1,606 2,043
— BEUMERRZEERIEE E — reversal of previously
recognised deferred
tax assets = 4,483
— BEHFEzaHEE — overprovisions in prior years (5,007) (574)
g (Bm) X Tax (credit)/expense (5,007) 5,946
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24.

25.

26.

Fres (BE) X W 4

RBE-ZERNE=A=+—"RALFE B
RMmEFEHENRI6%(ZTEEREF :

REEBAARTRBE DEERRAST
RBE - BRI BI85 678 BT 8 B 5
B oo

RARERFREARGER

TARRBZMBEMERZARAERIZTEA
FE & 548 525,638,000/ 7T (T T H4F ¢
5,951,000/ 7T) °

BR (B1)

HE T NE=-A=+—HALEEZEK
ERER - 15 RIREF AR E R R EEE
8 % 11,988,0008 c (Z T T A F
10,443,000 7T) & B #1780 2 hnE F 19
#67,582,0008% (Z=Z A4 : 15,964,000
B — ERMEEFI1000E 6 A1) E -

24,

25.

26.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31st March 2006, the weighted average applicable
tax rate was approximately 9.6% (2005: 6.8%). The change in
weighted average applicable tax rates is mainly caused by a change
in the distribution of the profit/loss among the group companies in
different tax jurisdictions and with different tax rates.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$25,638,000 (2005: HK$5,951,000).

(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculations of basic loss per share for the year ended 31st
March 2006 were based on the consolidated loss attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$11,988,000 (2005:
HK$10,443,000) and on the weighted average number of 67,582,000
shares (2005: 15,964,000 shares — after reflecting the consolidation
of 100 shares into 1 share) in issue during the year.
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27.

REREBR 27. CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
(a) BEMELEZRS (a) Cash generated from operations
ZEBAREF —EThHF
2006 2005
FET FiBT
HK$°000 HK$’000
B 753 Ail &5 48 Loss before taxation (16,995) (4,497)
B WA Interest income (1,707) (580)
B Interest expense 3,296 5,056
E=RON Dividend income — (659)
BE REEE Depreciation of plant and equipment 373 1,016
HEMERXREZEE Loss on disposal of plant
and equipment 23 87
A uh B K AR B Amortisation of website
development costs 15 27
HEMB AR ZF (Gain)/Loss on disposal of

(Mz) /BB subsidiaries, net (98) 63

HERE 2 F = Gain on disposal of

investments, net — (911)
RERBERD Write-back of provision for claim (2,977) —
EEASEHA KL Operating loss before

&1 working capital changes (18,070) (398)
FERD Decrease in inventories 56,961 35,850
BERe Em R (Increase)/decrease in deposits

for purchase of inventories (44,128) 5,749
Z 5 eI (3 m) R (Increase)/decrease in trade

receivables (798) 23,914
FERFHIE - He REAMERK Decrease in prepayments,

KIBR deposits and other receivables 10,788 5,876
B 5 1 N RIE R Decrease in trade payables (57,128) (148,697)
H i & 3R IE K FE 5T & (F T 0 Increase in other payables

and accruals 37,780 14,361

T8 U 3R I8 12 N Increase in receipts in advance 8,276 11,182

ME K 5 & Translation adjustments 291 (86)
EEMEL BN Net cash outflow generated

T ER from operations (6,028) (52,249)

(b) REESTRERAN G HEBERZEZ (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of plant and
FriS s IB B & equipment comprise:
—ZEEXRE —TERF
2006 2005
F#ET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREFE (ifte6) Net book amount (Note 6) 38 216
HERE RZE2EE Loss on sales of plant
and equipment (23) (87)
HERE RZRE2ENRE Proceeds from sales of
plant and equipment 15 129
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27. RERBR (4)

(c)

HEWRE QR ZEF, (F8)

27. CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Profit/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

HEZEFE Net assets disposed of:
—EEXE —ZTERF
2006 2005
FER FiBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
5 2 5% 1% Plant and equipment 635 469
REARE Long-term investment 780 —
FE Inventories 11,576 296
BEZS Deposits for purchase
of inventories 71,515 56,186
B RIE -~ B Rk E b fE W 5k 8 Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables —_ 501
g 5 A Trade receivables 4,660 3,302
RekREEFEEBEER Cash and cash equivalents 11,042 2,890
FER R R E R Accounts and bills payable (26,974) (14,730)
FEEt B & & A fih f& {5 5k IE Accruals and other payables (55,743) (9,519)
T8 W R IE Receipts in advance (12,740) (85,991)
& 2 75 18 Taxation payable (4,653) (811)
BEFRH Net assets 98 3,093
wR(E Total consideration 98 3,030
= (63)
B AGTEH AR Realisation of cumulative
translation adjustments 98 =
HEZ (k) EBE Gain/(loss) on disposal 98 (63)
NTIBIEERS Satisfied by:
H i & YR IH (i) Other receivables (i) 98 1,536
R& Cash — 1,494
98 3,030
REREDN - Analysis of cash flows:
KB 2 WEzBEERE Purchase consideration received
in cash = 1,494
HERERBSEEER Cash and cash equivalents disposed (11,042) (2,890)
W Bl k4 2 FE R IE (i) Receipt of prior year receivable (i) 1,536 —
(9,506) (1,396)

(i) MARBEZBEREZFA
HbEKFIR - WERER

S e
JBiE °

(i) The outstanding purchase consideration was included

as other receivables and was settled subsequently.
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28.

29.

ARER

R-ZZ_FRA=-+=0 ' AQEEEX
17#7312,900,00017 R AE B4 F H R -
BEEASEAERARARR L BRBER 5
REIEE - RREFER TIFE AR - AR
FR%0.107% T (A FAR) MRS RBERE
BB T Z L@ » WAIR =TT ZF X
At+tNBEZZEZERF A+ LBRITE -
HE-_ZZAXF-A=+—HLFEER "
298,000/ R #EE (ZZTZ A F : 206,000
12 R AE ) B 1T LA SR BE A A 5]298,000
B H (ZZZRF © 206,000088%1%) @ K
B 49/430,000/% 70 (ZEZ A F : 21,000/%
L) c MER=ZZEERAFANATHERAEKT
F2RIREEFHE BE -

B

BRERRR-_ZZETZFHA+=AHERR
Az BB 8 ([EFE)) R EFEH
HIEBBEARRRAREERNKE AR ZE
MERES (BEEAATES) XABK
% URBRD - EFFBIERN-_ZZ_FKX
A+B&LL MARRAR_ZFZE_FR A+
B B 5Ra— AR Rt &) (TRt 1)) LA
REFE - AERBRER SR 2 BRAED
REY - LAIREE GHERITE -

28.

29.

WARRANTS

On 23rd May 2002, the Company issued approximately 312,900,000
warrants to its shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every
five ordinary shares of the Company at no charge. The warrants
entitle the holders to subscribe in cash for ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.10 each (subject
to adjustment) and are exercisable from 18th June 2002 to 17th
June 2005. During the year ended 31st March 2006, 298,000 warrants
(2005: 206,000 warrants) were exercised to subscribe for 298,000
shares (2005: 206,000 shares) of the Company at a consideration
of approximately HK$30,000 (2005: HK$21,000). All the outstanding
warrants at 17th June 2005 were expired.

SHARE OPTIONS

According to the terms of the Company’s share option scheme
approved by the shareholders on 13th April 2000 (the “Old Scheme”),
the Board may at their discretion, invite any full-time employees of
the Company or any of the companies of the Group, including any
executive Directors, to take up options to subscribe for shares. The
Old Scheme was terminated on 10th June 2002 and a new share
option scheme was adopted by the Company on 10th June 2002
(the “New Scheme”) to replace the Old Scheme, with all options
granted under the old scheme continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the old terms.
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29.

BRE (&) 29. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)
BREZEDHFBFET ! Details of movement in the share options were as follows:
BREXA
Number of options
Fh
BRAEE 3 ERi#
REAH Exercise £ Lapsed Cancelled g8
#e Date of price per  REETEH ikid Beginning of during during End of
Name grant share  Vesting period Exercise period year the year the year year
h T T T
000 000 000 000
Bit#
0ld Scheme
gz
Directors:
il bt S % 23 048551 —EFTET-AtH  ZFE-EF+-AN\BZ 5,000 - (5,000) -
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai ~ T—A+H HK$0.485 Z2-F2-%1-A+tH ZE-ZEMATZH
7th November 2000 7th November 2000 to  8th November 2001 to
7th November 2001 12th April 2010
RARRE RRZF 036057 —ZFTFtA=B  -EF-E£TR-HZ
Mr. Desmond Fu tA=H HK$0.360 Z=FT-FnA=TH -—3-TEMA+ZA
Hay Ching 3rd July 2000 3rd July 2000 to 1st October 2001 to 250 - (250) -
30th September 2001 12th April 2010
Z33%F 0485%71 —ETTET-AtH ZZE-F+-A)\AZ
T-AtR EZS2-£+-AtR —Z-TE£MATZA
7th November 2000 HK$0.485  7th November 2000 8th November 2001 to 11,500 - (11,500) -
to 7th November 2001 12th April 2010
Es:
Employees:
it 223 0360571 —E3TELA-AZ -FE-£+F-BE
In aggregate tA=H “FE-EAE=tH -E-SEMATCH
3rd July 2000 HK$0.360  3rd July 2000 to st October 2001 to 12,100 (500) (11,600) -
30th September 2001 12th April 2010
#it _2ETF 0485%71 —FTTET-FtHAE -TT-F{-f)IRZE
In aggregate t-AtH ZEF-FT-AtR  ZE-TEMATZH
7th November 2000 HK$0.485  7th November 2000t  8th November 2001 to 25,900 (1,500) (24,400) -
7th November 2001 12th April 2010
54,750 (2,000) (52,750) -
it
New Scheme
At
In aggregate — — — -
54,750 (2,000) (52,750) —

RIZEZRAFLATEARTZARERR
FrRIRE £ - AR EZE AR H52,750,00017

W R AT 2 s AR A -

At the Company’s special general meeting held on 14th July 2005,
the Company resolved to cancel the 52,750,000 outstanding options.
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30.

31.

HREE

RZZZXRFE=A=1+—8 ' AQEEHR
TR—FENBARREZIRITREREAR
¥ 1R #76,600,0008 ¢ (Z T T A F .
88,725,000 L) - R=ZZTE R F=A=+
—B HMESKREEZRTEE(ZETH
£ [ 24,360,000 70) © RA A ZEERAK
SECEBERHTERAZERCRERE

X¥%BER) MEALAEARARE -

RITRLE

m= E—\iz =+—8 A&EBExH—
HRTZERRESMEZRITREN A
6,000,0005% 7T ( TEHF © 88,125,000/8
JL) ° mf7?ﬂ —A=+—8 " %@;&
T EEAEEHAH (=TT HF
63,765,000,%7EEEJJFH> o BB N TG
N MEE R

(i) AEEZEEBIRITHFHES,055,000
BIL(ZZEZTAHEF 16,080,000
TL) &

(i) AAFREZER (HZ30) -

30.

31.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2006, the Company had provided a corporate
guarantee of approximately HK$6,600,000 (2005: HK$88,725,000)
with respect to a banking facility made available to a subsidiary. As
at 31st March 2006, no bank borrowings were outstanding (2005:
HK$24,360,000). The Company’s directors and the Group’s
management anticipate that no material liabilities will arise from
such guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of business.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2006, the Group had a banking facility of
approximately HK$6,000,000 (2005: HK$88,125,000) from a bank
for loans and trade financing. As at 31st March 2006, this facility
was not utilised by the Group (2005: HK$63,765,000 was utilised).
This facility was secured by:

(i) pledge of the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
HK$3,055,000 (2005: HK$16,080,000); and

(i)  guarantee provided by the Company (note 30).
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32.

33.

A - EEEY

REZZBEXF=ZA=+—H AEEBES
BEHZE-_ZT ) \F=ZAZEERO2EE
AYEX 51,841,000 T (Z BT F & ¢
1,027,000/ 7T) ° RRFEN 2 HIEH B 5
DT

32.

COMMITMENTS — OPERATING LEASES

As at 31st March 2006, the Group had rental commitments of
approximately HK$1,841,000 (2005: HK$1,027,000) under various
operating leases extending to March 2008. Total future minimum
lease payments payable is analysed as follows:

—EEXRE —TERF
2006 2005
FHET FE&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R —F Not later than one year 937 705
B —FRARBDF Later than one year and
not later than five years 904 322
1,841 1,027
HEEALTZRES 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

RZBEZANF=ZA=+—H ' ' AAFH
North Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp.
([NASAC] - PR EHBIMKLZA
Al) ~ BEZE L L (NASACY & EIEIR A A
Ajia Partners Inc..2 I8 5 ) R H B E A L -
LA % Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited (F
BIEEEBBRARZERR) REEEA
T HIE#I46.1% « #121.1% 5 4)11.06% °
NASACK GBIREER —ZZERF/N\AN
HRKBENRAAB 2 #E -

WE—HDEEERAREEN S —THAH S
—HEEHMBREEZRERERERY
2F  AREREEAL - WEHTHIHKR
EHRZHARAERTZE - BITRREREEA
+ o

As at 31st March 2006, the Company was owned as to approximately
46.1% by North Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp. (“NASAC”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, as to approximately
21.1% by Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai (a shareholder of Ajia Partners
Inc., the ultimate holding company of NASAC) and his related parties,
and as to approximately 11.06% by Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited
(wholly owned by Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited) and its related
parties. NASAC and Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai acquired their interest
in the Company effective from 9th August 2005.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or common significant influence.
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33. HEEALTZXS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) UNTAHEBEATHITZERARSH (a) The following is a summary of the significant transactions
G carried out with related parties:
ZEEARE —TERF
2006 2005
FET F#E T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEATEHE R5HEE Name of related party/Nature
of transaction
BIEE1TER A A () Van Shung Chong Hong Limited (i)
—rEEEREZEE — Purchases made by
the Group 220,257 339,246
—HAEEREGZ — Commission from
KEREE2 procurement services
earned by the Group — 2,221
— A AN B Y E 2 B B — Interest charged to the Group 1,154 3,380
— A& B 2 1T — Administrative services fees
BR 7% & charged to the Group 30 360
HECEBFRAF(®G) CFY Enterprises Limited (i)
—MAEEKRzEEER — Rental expense charged
to the Group 13 162
— AN B WE 2z = — Rates, management fees
EEERKEEA and utilities charged
to the Group 9 =
Ajia Partners (HK) Limited (ii) Ajia Partners (HK) Limited (ii)
—MAEEKRzEEER — Rental expense charged
to the Group 583 =
—RAIAREERRZTHRSE — Administrative services
fee charged to the Group 598 =
North Asia Strategic Advisors (iii) North Asia Strategic Advisors (jii)
—MAEEKR 2 REE — Placement fee charged
to the Group 7,800 =
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33. HEEALZRE (&) 33.

(a) (&) (a)

Hfat -
BEETARARRERCEER

‘A @ J5 B Van Shung Chong (B.V.1)
Limited2 E# B &= °

()

Ajia Partners (HK) Limited % North
Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp.
([NASAC|) 2 A RKI B AR - I8
BREE BT -

(if)

(iii)  North Asia Strategic Advisors

(TNASA]) ANASACZ # % A 7]

7K £2 [§ B4 Ajia Partners (HK) Limited
(TAPHKI ) 7T 32 17 Bt AR 75 1 7%

e

NN AT £
Itk APHK[R & ﬁKE@TEﬁ—Qﬁ
Bk  BEZZEZRAFENANLBEZE

-= ;R¢RH:+EIZ%JJ: - 3 AR

BEKAT77,000ETT kb - AEHE
EﬁAPHK.J‘“"THT%%.:% VAT & #F 1

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(Cont’d)
Notes:

(i) Van Shung Chong Hong Limited and CFY Enterprises Limited

are wholly owned and controlled by Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.)
Limited.

(i)

Ajia Partners (HK) Limited is a fellow subsidiary of North Asia
Strategic Acquisition Corp. (“NASAC”) and associated with Mr.
Moses Tsang Kwok Tai.

(iii)  North Asia Strategic Advisors (“NASA”) is the holding company

of NASAC.

The Group entered into an administrative services agreement
with Ajia Partners (HK) Limited (“APHK”), under which APHK
has agreed to provide general administrative services to the
Group during the period from 9th August 2005 to 30th June
2006, at a monthly service fee of approximately HK$77,000.
In addition, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
APHK for leasing of office space from 9th August 2005 to 31st

EEHE - BZTEZERFENANLBRE March 2008 at a monthly rental of approximately HK$75,000.
—EENF=ZA=+—HBAL A
T8 & 49 /75,000 7T ©
(b) MEERIRBIESEZFRER (b)  Year end balances arising from purchases of goods or services:
ZEEARE —TTRF
2006 2005
FHET F#E T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAEALER Name of related company
BIEETHRRAF () Van Shung Chong Hong Limited (i) 36,916 118,843
() #HHBAEERER BAREEREE (i) The balance is unsecured, repayable within ordinary

iR R AE R T 8 R A R R AR 7 2
EEMRHLHE -

credit term and bore interest at commercial lending rates
for overdue balances.
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33. BEHEEALTZRE (&) 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c) HMBABZAER (ER2INEARAZ (c) Balance with subsidiaries (Company-only financial statements)
B %K)
FE Ut B FE BB A R 2 FRIE B E R The amounts with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
PR EEREEERD - bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms.

(dy REZE-ZTETZ F=A=+—HILHF (d) During the year ended 31st March 2006, the Group disposed
ER REBURESHETHEEE subsidiaries with zero net asset value (comprising total assets
FERBBTL(EEEEBLEYN of approximately HK$780,000 less total liabilities of
780,000 7T /% B & # 58 £1780,000/% approximately HK$780,000) to Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.)
J0) 2 Kl B 2 & F Van Shung Chong Limited at a consideration of HK$8.

(B.V.1.) Limited

(e) EFEZEEBEAEMS: (e) Key management compensation:
ZEBAREF —TTRF
2006 2005
FET F&TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
& RERL Salaries and allowances 3,843 2,191
RINAE A Retirement benefits
—REMKETE — defined contribution scheme 12 24
3,855 2,215
34. EEBE 34. DEFERRED TAXATION
REMRBNDIREEERBEER X17.5% Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences
ZZTRF 17.5%) REREE 2 G under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5%
"o (2005: 17.5%).
REHEEE (EERERFMIEREE) & The movement on the deferred tax assets, arising from cumulative
C) (N tax losses, is as follows:
ZEBAREF —TTRF
2006 2005
FET F&TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
F A #E R Balance at beginning of year — 4,483
£ 1A IR AIE 71 T £ () Deferred taxation credit for the year — (4,483)
IR AR Balance at end of year — —
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34.

35.

EEBIR (&)

RZZTZXRNFEF=A=1+—08  xEEZXHE
RIEEF TE & FE 4925,200,0008 T (=
FEE 22,734,000 7T) - EERE RATH
HERB(EXEBRBEREBRE) 2B
2. ZESBEAINERBLES -

HEBRREE

EFEBRE  RZTEANFREA=-+~A
7N /» &) #2 Autron Corporation Limited
([Autron]) ATSZ N ESREH R A G
Al RE¥T Autron Z FTIR D R Al ] iR (&5 A H &
& & % #9 372,000,000/ 7T (#HZ R 4
48,000,000 7T) ° Autron/s & F s 2
AEBBERA TR T BHEER - LRFM
BRBNMTEFRSAER LT - HEAR
HEBH - WAutronfEE 2 BB S IEE
77 MEZR R B 4 B Autrons] SRR B
BEm® -

34.

35.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

As at 31st March 2006, the Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets of approximately HK$25,200,000 (2005: HK$22,734,000),
primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses (subject
to agreement by relevant tax authorities) which can be carried forward
indefinitely.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to the year end, on 26th May 2006, the Company entered
into a non-legally binding term sheet with Autron Corporation Limited
(“Autron”), a leading assembly equipment solutions provider to the
electronics manufacturing industry and listed on the Main Boards of
both the Singapore and Australian Stock Exchanges, for a possible
investment in its new shares and convertible bonds totaling up to
approximately HK$372 million (equivalent of approximately US$48
million). As at the date of this report, due diligence on Autron is in
progress but the Company has not entered into any definitive
investment agreements with Autron.
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